
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 
Governance and Human Resources 

Town Hall, Upper Street, London, N1 2UD 
 
 

AGENDA FOR THE LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE B 

 
Members of Licensing Sub Committee B are summoned to a meeting, which will be held in 
Committee Room 4, Town Hall, Upper Street, N1 2UD on, 8 December 2015 at 6.30 pm. 
 
 
John Lynch 
Head of Democratic Services 
 
 

Enquiries to : Jackie Tunstall 

Tel : 020 7527 3068 

E-mail : democracy@islington.gov.uk 

Despatched : 30 November 2015 

 
 
Membership Substitute 
 
Councillor Alex Diner (Chair) 
Councillor Marian Spall (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Robert Khan 
 

All other members of the Licensing committee 

 
Quorum: is 3 Councillors 
 

 
Welcome :  Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting.  

Procedures to be followed at the meeting are attached. 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 

 

A.  
 

Formal matters 
 

Page 

1.  Introductions and procedure 
 

 

2.  Apologies for absence 
 

 

3.  Declarations of substitute members 
 

 

4.  Declarations of interest 
 

 

 If you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest* in an item of business: 
 if it is not yet on the council’s register, you must declare both the 

existence and details of it at the start of the meeting or when it becomes 
apparent; 

 you may choose to declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest that is 
already in the register in the interests of openness and transparency.   

In both the above cases, you must leave the room without participating in 
discussion of the item. 
 
If you have a personal interest in an item of business and you intend to speak 
or vote on the item you must declare both the existence and details of it at the 
start of the meeting or when it becomes apparent but you may participate in the 
discussion and vote on the item. 
 

*(a) Employment, etc - Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation 
carried on for profit or gain. 

(b) Sponsorship - Any payment or other financial benefit in respect of your 
expenses in carrying out duties as a member, or of your election; including 
from a trade union. 

(c)  Contracts - Any current contract for goods, services or works, between you 
or your partner (or a body in which one of you has a beneficial interest) and 
the council. 

(d)  Land - Any beneficial interest in land which is within the council’s area. 

(e)  Licences- Any licence to occupy land in the council’s area for a month or 
longer. 

(f)  Corporate tenancies - Any tenancy between the council and a body in 
which you or your partner have a beneficial interest. 

 (g) Securities - Any beneficial interest in securities of a body which has a place 
of business or land in the council’s area, if the total nominal value of the 
securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that body or of any one class of its issued share capital.   

 
This applies to all members present at the meeting. 

 

5.  Order of Business 
 

 

6.  Minutes of Previous Meetings 
 

1 - 22 

B.  
 

Items for Decision 
 

Page 

1.  Nando's, 99-100 Turnmill Street, EC1M 5QP - Application for a premises 
licence variation 
 

23 – 68 
Clerkenwell 



 
 
 

2.  Borough Wines, 344a Essex Road, N1 3PD - Application for a new 
premises licence 
 

69 – 102 
Canonbury 

3.  The Junction Cafe, 95 Junction Road, N19 5QX - Application for a new 
premises licence 
 

103 – 130 
Junction 

4.  Restaurant, 88 Highbury Park, N5 2XE - Application for a new premises 
licence 
 

131 – 162 
Highbury East 

5.  City News, 4 Exmouth Market, EC1R 4PX - Application for a new 
premises licence 
 

163 – 184 
Clerkenwell 

C.  
 

Urgent non-exempt items 
 

 

 Any non-exempt items which the Chair agrees should be considered urgently by 
reason of special circumstances. The reasons for urgency will be agreed by the 
Chair and recorded in the minutes. 
 

 

D.  
 

Exclusion of public and press 
 

 

 To consider whether, in view of the nature of the remaining items on the agenda, 
any of them are likely to involve the disclosure of exempt or confidential 
information within the terms of the Access to Information Procedure Rules in the 
Constitution and, if so, whether to exclude the press and public during 
discussion thereof. 
 

 

E.  
 

Urgent Exempt Items (if any) 
 

 

 Any exempt items which the Chair agrees should be considered urgently by 
reason of special circumstances.  The reasons for urgency will be agreed by the 
Chair and recorded in the minutes. 

 

 
 



 
 
 

 
ISLINGTON LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEES -   
  
PROCEDURE FOR HEARING LICENSING APPLICATIONS UNDER THE  
LICENSING ACT 2003 

 

  
INTRODUCTION TIME 

GUIDE 
1)  The Chair of the Sub-Committee will open the meeting and invite all members of the Sub-Committee, 
Officers, the applicant and anybody making representations, including witnesses (who have been given 
permission to appear) to introduce themselves. 

 

  
2)  The Chair will introduce the application and draw attention to the procedure to be followed as detailed 
below. 

 

  
CONSIDERATION OF APPLICATIONS:  
  
N.B. The Sub-Committee have read all the papers.  All parties should use this time to present a 
summary of their key points and not to repeat the detail already provided in the report. 

 

  
3)  The Licensing Officer will report any further information relating to the application or representations. 
Where necessary the relevant parties will respond to these points during their submissions. 

 

  
4)  Responsible Authorities to present the key points of their representations; and clarify any points 
requested by the Authority.  Witnesses, given permission by the Authority, may appear. 

10 
mins 

  
5)  The Sub-Committee to question the responsible authorities on matters arising from their submission.  
  
6)  Interested Parties to present the key points of their representations; and clarify any points requested 
by the Authority.  Witnesses, given permission by the Authority, may appear. 

10 
mins 

  
7)  The Sub-Committee to question the objectors on matters arising from their submission.  
  
8) The applicant to present the key points of their application, address the representations and clarify any 
points requested by the Authority.  Witnesses given permission by the Authority may appear. 

10 
mins 

  
9)  The Sub-Committee to question the applicants on matters arising from their submission.  
 
10)  If required, the Licensing Officer to clarify matters relating to the application and the Licensing Policy. 

 

 
11)  The Chair may give permission for any party to question another party in the order of representations     
given above. 

 

 
CASE SUMMARIES 

 

  
12)  Responsible Authorities 2 
13)  Interested parties mins 
14)  Applicant each 
  

DELIBERATION AND DECISION  
 
15)  The Sub-Committee may retire to consider its decision.  The Committee Clerk and Legal Officer will 
remain with the Sub-Committee. 

 

 
16)  If the Sub-Committee retires, all parties should remain available to provide further information or 
clarification. 

 

 
17)  The chair will announce their decision giving reasons and any conditions to be attached to the 
licence.  All parties will be informed of the decision in writing. 

 

 
 



 

25 
 

London Borough of Islington 
 

Licensing Sub Committee B -  14 October 2015 
 

Minutes of the meeting of the Licensing Sub Committee B held at Committee Room 4, Town Hall, 
Upper Street, N1 2UD on  14 October 2015 at 6.30 pm. 

 
 

Present: Councillors: Alex Diner (Chair), Aysegul Erdogan and Flora Williamson 

 
 

Councillor Alex Diner in the Chair 
 

 

56 INTRODUCTIONS AND PROCEDURE (Item A1) 
Councillor Alex Diner welcome everyone to the meeting, asked members and officers to 
introduce themselves and outlined the procedures for the meeting. 
 

57 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Item A2) 
Apologies were received from Councillor Khan and Councillor Spall. 
 

58 DECLARATIONS OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (Item A3) 
Councillor Williamson substituted for Councillor Spall and Councillor Erdogan substituted for 
Councillor Khan. 
 

59 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Item A4) 
None. 
 

60 ORDER OF BUSINESS (Item A5) 
The order of business was as the agenda.  Items B1 – B3 were taken together at the 
meeting although each decision was made separately. 
 

61 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Item A6) 
RESOLVED 
That the minutes of the meeting held on the 4 August 2015 be confirmed as an accurate 
record of proceedings and the Chair be authorised to sign them. 
 

62 6A AND 6B ESTHER ANNE PLACE, N1 1WL - APPLICATION FOR A PROVISION 
STATEMENT (Item B1) 
Items B1-B3 were taken together as one item although decisions on each item were made 
separately. 
 
The licensing officer reported that two documents had been circulated separately.  These 
were the applicant’s response to objections from residents and in return the response from 
residents to this document.  These would be interleaved with the agenda papers.  The noise 
officer had withdrawn their objections and the metropolitan police had also withdrawn their 
representation following conditions put forward by the applicant.  
 
Local residents representing Almeida Street, Moon Street, Studd Street and Theberton 
Street resident associations spoke against the application.  It was reported that planning 
consent had been granted until only 23:00 hours each day and that exit from the mall area 
should be to Upper Street only. Residents were concerned about noise disturbance and 
loitering.  There would be 66 flats along the Central Avenue.  They considered that there 
should be no off sales or sales of take away food.  There should be no disturbance from live 

Page 1

Agenda Item A6



Licensing Sub Committee B -  14 October 2015 
 

26 
 

music after 10pm.  It was understood that the planning status of A1 and A3 development 
was flexible but it was considered that there should be some limit to the use of A3.  They 
stated that the access doors to Central Avenue should be closed at 10pm and patrons 
directed and encouraged to leave via Upper Street.  Signage was not enough.  There 
should be no new customers after 10pm.  If possible, there should be a ban on smoking in 
Central Avenue but if not, a set limit to the number of smokers and tables and chairs outside 
the premises should be fenced off.  The dedicated phone number for complaints should be 
advertised on their website.  It was reported that bottling out had been covered in the 
planning consent and was to be carried out internally. No taxis or private hire vehicles 
should pick up from Esther Anne Place.  Customers using the gym should be discouraged 
from smoking outside and taxis should be restricted from picking up outside the premises.   
 
Patrons should leave by Upper Street. It was reported that this was a saturation area with a 
high volume of anti-social behaviour following the consumption of alcohol.   
 
The applicant informed the Sub-Committee that this was an application for a provisional 
statement and the premises would not be occupied until 2017.  A tenant would need to 
apply for a premises licence and he considered that licensing policy 6, regarding planning 
consent did not apply to provisional statements.   
 
A ten minute adjournment was held for the Sub-Committee to take legal advice as to 
whether licensing policy 6 applied to provisional statements.  
 
Upon return, the legal officer reported that she had advised the Sub-Committee members 
that licensing policy 29, in relation to provisional statements, stated that the Sub-Committee 
should, as far as reasonably practicable apply the same standards to provisional statements 
as to premises licences.   She stated that licensing policy 6 was therefore still relevant 
although she had also reminded members that planning and licensing were separate 
regimes.  
 
The applicant asked the Sub-Committee to consider the weight they would give to the 
planning consent hours.   
 
The applicant showed a map of the development and reported that the majority of patrons 
would exit onto Upper Street to local transport.  A pop-up restaurant had been provided with 
a licence under delegated powers and had operated without complaint. Conditions agreed 
now would be passed onto any premises licence unless there was a substantial change in 
the application. The bar in the gym was in the basement and was not considered a bar in 
the strictest sense.  This would be a family gym. Restaurants would have a small bar area 
but most patrons would be seated having a table meal. They would not be fast food 
restaurants. Outside tables and chairs would be removed and rendered unusable by 10pm. 
They did not consider that there should be a condition regarding doors and windows as 
noise escape would be dealt with.  It was not necessary to have a condition regarding no 
further admissions after 10pm. When considering the cumulative impact policy, the Sub-
Committee would consider the views of the responsible authorities, the proposed hours, the 
type and number of customers, the conditions and the standards of management to ensure 
premises did not have a negative impact on the cumulative impact policy.  The development 
would promote mixed use of the premises and it was expected to have local exhibitions and 
art and cultural activities. Tables and chairs outside would be properly managed and would 
have the benefit of encouraging continental, family style dining. Regarding the conditions 
suggested by the residents he stated that it would not be necessary to restrict the number of 
smokers as meals would not take a long time, it would not be possible to enforce a 
condition moving patrons to a specific direction and no new entry to patrons after 10pm was 
not necessary. Regarding off sales the applicant stated that it was acceptable that off sales 
be limited to part bottles of wine consumed with the meal. Live music was not a licensable 

Page 2



Licensing Sub Committee B -  14 October 2015 
 

27 
 

activity until 11pm.  After 11pm music was background and if there was disturbance the 
licence could be reviewed or notice served.  The applicant would be unable to prevent taxis 
coming into the development but would not encourage them to do so. It was not considered 
appropriate or proportionate that all customers had to leave the premises by 11pm. 
 
In response to questions it was noted that the applicant had no objection to a drinking up 
time in the bar area.  It was noted that usually 15% of floor space would be taken up by an 
ancillary bar. There would be approximately 165 covers in each restaurant, although it was 
difficult to calculate at this early stage.  However, residents were protected if there was a 
material change and if covers increased to 250-330. This was a restaurant and Challenge 
25 would be onerous on the licensee. There would be lighting at either end of the mall and 
good signage and lighting throughout.  There could be a number of smokers walking along 
Esther Anne Place so it would not be appropriate to restrict smokers outside the premises. 
The development would be controlled by 24 hour CCTV and security and the two 
restaurants and the gym would be a small part of the total offer.  Concern was raised that 
the applicant had not completed the section in the application form asking the applicant to 
describe the steps that would be taken to promote the licensing objectives. The applicant 
stated he had produced a proposed schedule of conditions and had not wanted to put waffle 
on the form.  He undertook to complete the form more fully for future applications. It was 
noted that the bar in the gym was more a lounge than a bar.  Gym members would need to 
go through a reception area and it was effectively a private club. 
 
In summary, the residents reported that a premises in the development was already 
operating without planning permission.  A condition had been imposed on the Grangers 
licence in Clerkenwell regarding table meals.  Not allowing re-entry after 10pm was 
considered reasonable.  Tables outside should be fenced off.  Smokers should be 
restricted.  Taxis should be discouraged and security at the development could refuse 
access except for disabled passengers. Residents considered that there be no vehicular 
access. They stated that taxis already created a parking problem in Theberton Street.  
 
The applicant stated that a no entry policy after 10pm was not appropriate and it would be 
difficult to micro manage access and egress. The Sub-Committee should consider the 
weight it gave to the planning consent in the context of hours of operation.  The applicant 
had until 2017 to make amendments to the planning permission.  Any licence would not be 
able to be operated later than the planning consent in any event.  Any applicant for a 
premises licence would not benefit from a provisional statement if there was a material 
change in the application.  Traffic had been considered at the planning stage and it was not 
considered appropriate to condition.  
 
RESOLVED 
a) That the provisional statement in respect of 6a and 6b Esther Anne Place, N1 be 
granted:- 

i) To permit the premises to sell alcohol, on and off supplies only, on Sundays to 
Thursdays from 10:00 until 23:00 and Fridays and Saturdays from 10:00 until midnight. 

ii) To allow the provision of late night refreshment, Fridays and Saturdays from 23:00 until 
midnight. 

iii) Opening hours to be Sundays to Thursdays from 08:00 until 23:00 and Fridays and 
Saturdays from 08:00 until midnight. 

b) Conditions proposed by the applicant and the following additions/amendments shall be 
applied to the licence. 

 Condition 3 proposed.  The outside tables shall be cleared of patrons and rendered 
unusable by 10pm. 

Page 3



Licensing Sub Committee B -  14 October 2015 
 

28 
 

 The bar area be not more than 15% of the total restaurant/bar floor space. 

 No drinks shall be served in the bar area within the last 30 minutes of the closing time 
of the premises. 

 No more than 10% of the total capacity of the restaurant shall be permitted to smoke 
outside the premises at any one time. 
 

REASONS FOR DECISION 
The Sub-Committee listened to all the evidence and submissions and read all the material. 
The Sub-Committee reached the decision having given consideration to the Licensing Act 
2003, as amended, and its regulations, the national guidance and the Council’s Licensing 
Policy.  
 
The Sub-Committee took into consideration Licensing policy 29.  Licensing policy 29 states 
that in considering applications for a provisional statement the Sub-Committee will as far as 
reasonably practicable apply the same standards as required for the grant of the premises 
licence.   
 
Under Licensing policy 2, the premises fall into the Angel and Upper Street cumulative 
impact area.  Licensing policy 2 creates a rebuttable presumption that applications for new 
and variations to premises licences that are likely to add to the existing cumulative impact 
will normally be refused, unless an applicant can demonstrate why the operation of the 
premises involved will not add to the cumulative impact or otherwise impact adversely on 
the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
The Sub-Committee heard evidence from local residents representing Almeida Street, 
Moon Street, Studd Street and Theberton Street resident associations.  The Sub-Committee 
noted resident’s concerns about noise disturbance and loitering. Residents stated that there 
would be at least 66 flats and so the future residents above the premises should be 
considered. Residents were concerned that the hours sought in relation to the premises 
differed from the planning consent.  Residents did not want take aways of food or drink, live 
music, any new customers after 10pm or any taxi drop offs.  Residents were concerned that 
access should only be via the arcades and Upper Street. Residents were concerned about 
the number of smokers and the outside seating area and suggested that a contact number 
should be available for resident’s complaints.  
 
The Sub-Committee noted that the police and noise conditions had been agreed and the 
representations withdrawn.  The Sub-Committee heard evidence from the applicant’s 
representative that, in applying for a provisional statement, the applicant was trying to get 
the best template that their future tenant would have to abide by.  The Sub-Committee 
heard that the hours sought by the applicant were within the core hours set out in licensing 
policy 8.  The Sub-Committee heard that the proposed restaurants were not fast food 
outlets and that the whole tone was more aspirational.  The applicant had offered a 
condition that outside tables and chairs be rendered unusable by 10pm.  The applicant’s 
representative asked that there be no condition in relation to new customers after 10pm and 
stated that it would not be practicable to have a member of staff directing customers to 
Upper Street after 10pm, although there would be signage.  The Sub-Committee heard that 
the restaurant would not add to the cumulative impact due to the type of premises, location, 
hours, types and numbers of customers and the high standards of management. The Sub-
Committee noted that the applicant is promoting a mixed use for the development which 
includes the old Almeida Theatre, rehearsal rooms and hopefully local exhibitions. The 
applicant’s representative confirmed that the bar area would be no bigger than 15% of the 
floor space. It was noted that the development would have 24 hour CCTV and security. 
 

Page 4



Licensing Sub Committee B -  14 October 2015 
 

29 
 

The Sub-Committee was satisfied that, with the conditions proposed and the additional 
conditions, the premises would not add to the cumulative impact in the area. The Sub-
Committee noted that if the applicant’s future tenants applied for a premises licence that 
was substantially different, new objections could be raised. The Sub-Committee noted the 
applicant’s assurances that the premises would not be operated outside the remit of the 
planning consent. The Sub-Committee noted that the applicant had met with police and 
agreed comprehensive conditions. The Sub-Committee noted that the premises were an 
integral part of the development which would benefit the area.  
 
The Sub-Committee took into account licensing policies 2, 8, 18, 20 and 29 and concluded 
that, in granting the provisional statement with the comprehensive conditions attached, the 
licensing objectives would be promoted.   
 

63 15 ESTHER ANNE PLACE, N1 1UL - APPLICATION FOR A PROVISIONAL 
STATEMENT (Item B2) 
The licensing officer reported that two documents had been circulated separately.  These 
were the applicant’s response to objections from residents and in return the response from 
residents to this document.  These would be interleaved with the agenda papers.  The noise 
officer had withdrawn their objections and the metropolitan police had also withdrawn their 
representation following conditions put forward by the applicant.  
 
Local residents representing Almeida Street, Moon Street, Studd Street and Theberton 
Street resident associations spoke against the application.  It was reported that planning 
consent had been granted until only 23:00 hours each day and that exit from the mall area 
should be to Upper Street only. Residents were concerned about noise disturbance and 
loitering.  There would be 66 flats along the Central Avenue.  They considered that there 
should be no off sales or sales of take away food.  There should be no disturbance from live 
music after 10pm.  It was understood that the planning status of A1 and A3 development 
was flexible but it was considered that there should be some limit to the use of A3.  They 
stated that the access doors to Central Avenue should be closed at 10pm and patrons 
directed and encouraged to leave via Upper Street.  Signage was not enough.  There 
should be no new customers after 10pm.  If possible, there should be a ban on smoking in 
Central Avenue but if not, a set limit to the number of smokers and tables and chairs outside 
the premises should be fenced off.  The dedicated phone number for complaints should be 
advertised on their website.  It was reported that bottling out had been covered in the 
planning consent and was to be carried out internally. No taxis or private hire vehicles 
should pick up from Esther Anne Place.  Customers using the gym should be discouraged 
from smoking outside and taxis should be restricted from picking up outside the premises.   
 
Patrons should leave by Upper Street. It was reported that this was a saturation area with a 
high volume of anti-social behaviour following the consumption of alcohol.   
 
The applicant informed the Sub-Committee that this was an application for a provisional 
statement and the premises would not be occupied until 2017.  A tenant would need to 
apply for a premises licence and he considered that licensing policy 6, regarding planning 
consent did not apply to provisional statements.   
 
A ten minute adjournment was held for the Sub-Committee to take legal advice as to 
whether licensing policy 6 applied to provisional statements.  
 
Upon return, the legal officer reported that she had advised the Sub-Committee members 
that licensing policy 29, in relation to provisional statements, stated that the Sub-Committee 
should, as far as reasonably practicable apply the same standards to provisional statements 
as to premises licences.   She stated that licensing policy 6 was therefore still relevant 

Page 5



Licensing Sub Committee B -  14 October 2015 
 

30 
 

although she had also reminded members that planning and licensing were separate 
regimes.  
 
The applicant asked the Sub-Committee to consider the weight they would give to the 
planning consent hours.   
 
The applicant showed a map of the development and reported that the majority of patrons 
would exit onto Upper Street to local transport.  A pop-up restaurant had been provided with 
a licence under delegated powers and had operated without complaint. Conditions agreed 
now would be passed onto any premises licence unless there was a substantial change in 
the application. The bar in the gym was in the basement and was not considered a bar in 
the strictest sense.  This would be a family gym. Restaurants would have a small bar area 
but most patrons would be seated having a table meal. They would not be fast food 
restaurants. Outside tables and chairs would be removed and rendered unusable by 10pm. 
They did not consider that there should be a condition regarding doors and windows as 
noise escape would be dealt with.  It was not necessary to have a condition regarding no 
further admissions after 10pm. When considering the cumulative impact policy, the Sub-
Committee would consider the views of the responsible authorities, the proposed hours, the 
type and number of customers, the conditions and the standards of management to ensure 
premises did not have a negative impact on the cumulative impact policy.  The development 
would promote mixed use of the premises and it was expected to have local exhibitions and 
art and cultural activities. Tables and chairs outside would be properly managed and would 
have the benefit of encouraging continental, family style dining. Regarding the conditions 
suggested by the residents he stated that it would not be necessary to restrict the number of 
smokers as meals would not take a long time, it would not be possible to enforce a 
condition moving patrons to a specific direction and no new entry to patrons after 10pm was 
not necessary. Regarding off sales the applicant stated that it was acceptable that off sales 
be limited to part bottles of wine consumed with the meal. Live music was not a licensable 
activity until 11pm.  After 11pm music was background and if there was disturbance the 
licence could be reviewed or notice served.  The applicant would be unable to prevent taxis 
coming into the development but would not encourage them to do so. It was not considered 
appropriate or proportionate that all customers had to leave the premises by 11pm. 
 
In response to questions it was noted that the applicant had no objection to a drinking up 
time in the bar area.  It was noted that usually 15% of floor space would be taken up by an 
ancillary bar. There would be approximately 165 covers in each restaurant, although it was 
difficult to calculate at this early stage.  However, residents were protected if there was a 
material change and if covers increased to 250-330. This was a restaurant and Challenge 
25 would be onerous on the licensee. There would be lighting at either end of the mall and 
good signage and lighting throughout.  There could be a number of smokers walking along 
Esther Anne Place so it would not be appropriate to restrict smokers outside the premises. 
The development would be controlled by 24 hour CCTV and security and the two 
restaurants and the gym would be a small part of the total offer.  Concern was raised that 
the applicant had not completed the section in the application form asking the applicant to 
describe the steps that would be taken to promote the licensing objectives. The applicant 
stated he had produced a proposed schedule of conditions and had not wanted to put waffle 
on the form. He undertook to complete the form more fully for future applications. It was 
noted that the bar in the gym was more a lounge than a bar.  Gym members would need to 
go through a reception area and it was effectively a private club. 
  
In summary, the residents reported that a premises in the development was already 
operating without planning permission.  A condition had been imposed on the Grangers 
licence in Clerkenwell regarding table meals.  Not allowing re-entry after 10pm was 
considered reasonable.  Tables outside should be fenced off.  Smokers should be 
restricted.  Taxis should be discouraged and security at the development could refuse 

Page 6



Licensing Sub Committee B -  14 October 2015 
 

31 
 

access except for disabled passengers. Residents considered that there be no vehicular 
access. They stated that taxis already created a parking problem in Theberton Street.  
 
The applicant stated that a no entry policy after 10pm was not appropriate and it would be 
difficult to micro manage access and egress. The Sub-Committee should consider the 
weight it gave to the planning consent in the context of hours of operation.  The applicant 
had until 2017 to make amendments to the planning permission.  Any licence would not be 
able to be operated later than the planning consent in any event.  Any applicant for a 
premises licence would not benefit from a provisional statement if there was a material 
change in the application.  Traffic had been considered at the planning stage and it was not 
considered appropriate to condition. 
 
RESOLVED  
a) that the application for a provisional statement in respect of 15 Esther Anne Place, N1 
1UL be granted:- 

i) To permit the premises to sell alcohol, on supplies only, Sundays to Thursdays from 
10:00 until 23:00 and Fridays and Saturdays from 10:00 until midnight.  

ii) To allow the provision of late night refreshment, Fridays and Saturdays from 23:00 until 
midnight; 

iii) Opening hours to be: Sundays to Thursdays from 08:00 until 23:00 and Fridays and 
Saturdays from 08:00 until midnight.  

 
b) That conditions proposed by the applicant with the following amendments shall be 
applied to the licence. 

 Condition 13 to read. The premises shall operate a Challenge 25 scheme, all staff to be 
trained accordingly and a refusals book kept. 
 

REASONS FOR DECISION 
The Sub-Committee listened to all the evidence and submissions and read all the material. 
The Sub-Committee reached the decision having given consideration to the Licensing Act 
2003, as amended, and its regulations, the national guidance and the Council’s Licensing 
Policy.  
 
The Sub-Committee took into consideration Licensing policy 29.  Licensing policy 29 states 
that in considering applications for a provisional statement the Sub-Committee will as far as 
reasonably practicable apply the same standards as required for the grant of the premises 
licence.   
 
Under Licensing policy 2, the premises fall into the Angel and Upper Street cumulative 
impact area.  Licensing policy 2 creates a rebuttable presumption that applications for new 
and variations to premises licences that are likely to add to the existing cumulative impact 
will normally be refused, unless an applicant can demonstrate why the operation of the 
premises involved will not add to the cumulative impact or otherwise impact adversely on 
the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
The Sub-Committee heard evidence from local residents representing Almeida Street, 
Moon Street, Studd Street and Theberton Street resident associations.  The Sub-Committee 
noted resident’s concerns about noise disturbance and loitering. Residents stated that there 
would be at least 66 flats and so the future residents above the premises should be 
considered. Residents were concerned that the hours sought in relation to the premises 
differed from the planning consent.  Residents stated that there should be a 30 minute 
drinking up time and smoking should be discouraged in Central Avenue.   Residents were 

Page 7



Licensing Sub Committee B -  14 October 2015 
 

32 
 

concerned that access should only be via the arcades and Upper Street and taxis dropping 
off in Central Avenue.   
 
The Sub-Committee noted that the police and noise conditions had been agreed and the 
representations withdrawn.  The Sub-Committee heard evidence from the applicant’s 
representative that, in applying for a provisional statement, the applicant was trying to get 
the best template that their future tenant would have to abide by.  The applicant’s 
representative stated that it was a family gym and that there would be a discreet lounge 
area where alcohol would be sold.  It would not be a bar in the strictest sense but more a 
catering area where people could order juice and food as well as alcohol.   
 
The applicant had offered a condition that alcohol shall only be sold to members of the 
gymnasium and their bona fide guests or persons attending a private function.  Anyone 
wishing to purchase alcohol would have to pass through reception first.  The Sub-
Committee noted that the applicant is promoting a mixed use for the development which 
includes the old Almeida Theatre, rehearsal rooms and hopefully local exhibitions.  It was 
noted that the development would have 24 hour CCTV and security. 

 
The Sub-Committee was satisfied that, with the conditions proposed and the additional 
conditions, the premises would not add to the cumulative impact in the area. The Sub-
Committee noted that if the applicant’s future tenants applied for a premises licence that 
was substantially different, new objections could be raised. The Sub-Committee noted the 
applicant’s assurances that the premises would not be operated outside the remit of the 
planning consent. The Sub-Committee noted that the applicant had met with police and 
agreed comprehensive conditions. The Sub-Committee noted that the premises were an 
integral part of the development which would benefit the area.  
 
The Sub-Committee took into account licensing policies 2, 8, 18, 20 and 29 and concluded 
that, in granting the provisional statement with the comprehensive conditions attached, the 
licensing objectives would be promoted. 
 

64 116N UPPER STREET, N1 1QP - APPLICATION FOR A PROVISIONAL STATEMENT 
(Item B3) 
The licensing officer reported that two documents had been circulated separately.  These 
were the applicant’s response to objections from residents and in return the response from 
residents to this document.  These would be interleaved with the agenda papers.  The noise 
officer had withdrawn their objections and the metropolitan police had also withdrawn their 
representation following conditions put forward by the applicant.  
 
Local residents representing Almeida Street, Moon Street, Studd Street and Theberton 
Street resident associations spoke against the application.  It was reported that planning 
consent had been granted until only 23:00 hours each day and that exit from the mall area 
should be to Upper Street only. Residents were concerned about noise disturbance and 
loitering.  There would be 66 flats along the Central Avenue.  They considered that there 
should be no off sales or sales of take away food.  There should be no disturbance from live 
music after 10pm.  It was understood that the planning status of A1 and A3 development 
was flexible but it was considered that there should be some limit to the use of A3.  They 
stated that the access doors to Central Avenue should be closed at 10pm and patrons 
directed and encouraged to leave via Upper Street.  Signage was not enough.  There 
should be no new customers after 10pm.  If possible, there should be a ban on smoking in 
Central Avenue but if not, a set limit to the number of smokers and tables and chairs outside 
the premises should be fenced off.  The dedicated phone number for complaints should be 
advertised on their website.  It was reported that bottling out had been covered in the 
planning consent and was to be carried out internally. No taxis or private hire vehicles 

Page 8



Licensing Sub Committee B -  14 October 2015 
 

33 
 

should pick up from Esther Anne Place.  Customers using the gym should be discouraged 
from smoking outside and taxis should be restricted from picking up outside the premises.   
 
Patrons should leave by Upper Street. It was reported that this was a saturation area with a 
high volume of anti-social behaviour following the consumption of alcohol.   
 
The applicant informed the Sub-Committee that this was an application for a provisional 
statement and the premises would not be occupied until 2017.  A tenant would need to 
apply for a premises licence and he considered that licensing policy 6, regarding planning 
consent did not apply to provisional statements.   
 
A ten minute adjournment was held for the Sub-Committee to take legal advice as to 
whether licensing policy 6 applied to provisional statements.  
 
Upon return, the legal officer reported that she had advised the Sub-Committee members 
that licensing policy 29, in relation to provisional statements, stated that the Sub-Committee 
should, as far as reasonably practicable apply the same standards to provisional statements 
as to premises licences.   She stated that licensing policy 6 was therefore still relevant 
although she had also reminded members that planning and licensing were separate 
regimes.  
 
The applicant asked the Sub-Committee to consider the weight they would give to the 
planning consent hours.   
 
The applicant showed a map of the development and reported that the majority of patrons 
would exit onto Upper Street to local transport.  A pop-up restaurant had been provided with 
a licence under delegated powers and had operated without complaint. Conditions agreed 
now would be passed onto any premises licence unless there was a substantial change in 
the application. The bar in the gym was in the basement and was not considered a bar in 
the strictest sense.  This would be a family gym. Restaurants would have a small bar area 
but most patrons would be seated having a table meal. They would not be fast food 
restaurants. Outside tables and chairs would be removed and rendered unusable by 10pm. 
They did not consider that there should be a condition regarding doors and windows as 
noise escape would be dealt with.  It was not necessary to have a condition regarding no 
further admissions after 10pm. When considering the cumulative impact policy, the Sub-
Committee would consider the views of the responsible authorities, the proposed hours, the 
type and number of customers, the conditions and the standards of management to ensure 
premises did not have a negative impact on the cumulative impact policy.  The development 
would promote mixed use of the premises and it was expected to have local exhibitions and 
art and cultural activities. Tables and chairs outside would be properly managed and would 
have the benefit of encouraging continental, family style dining. Regarding the conditions 
suggested by the residents he stated that it would not be necessary to restrict the number of 
smokers as meals would not take a long time, it would not be possible to enforce a 
condition moving patrons to a specific direction and no new entry to patrons after 10pm was 
not necessary. Regarding off sales the applicant stated that it was acceptable that off sales 
be limited to part bottles of wine consumed with the meal. Live music was not a licensable 
activity until 11pm.  After 11pm music was background and if there was disturbance the 
licence could be reviewed or notice served.  The applicant would be unable to prevent taxis 
coming into the development but would not encourage them to do so. It was not considered 
appropriate or proportionate that all customers had to leave the premises by 11pm. 
 
In response to questions it was noted that the applicant had no objection to a drinking up 
time in the bar area.  It was noted that usually 15% of floor space would be taken up by an 
ancillary bar. There would be approximately 165 covers in each restaurant, although it was 
difficult to calculate at this early stage.  However, residents were protected if there was a 

Page 9



Licensing Sub Committee B -  14 October 2015 
 

34 
 

material change and if covers increased to 250-330. This was a restaurant and Challenge 
25 would be onerous on the licensee. There would be lighting at either end of the mall and 
good signage and lighting throughout.  There could be a number of smokers walking along 
Esther Anne Place so it would not be appropriate to restrict smokers outside the premises. 
The development would be controlled by 24 hour CCTV and security and the two 
restaurants and the gym would be a small part of the total offer.  Concern was raised that 
the applicant had not completed the section in the application form asking the applicant to 
describe the steps that would be taken to promote the licensing objectives. The applicant 
stated he had produced a proposed schedule of conditions and had not wanted to put waffle 
on the form. He undertook to complete the form more fully for future applications. It was 
noted that the bar in the gym was more a lounge than a bar.  Gym members would need to 
go through a reception area and it was effectively a private club. 
 
In summary, the residents reported that a premises in the development was already 
operating without planning permission.  A condition had been imposed on the Grangers 
licence in Clerkenwell regarding table meals.  Not allowing re-entry after 10pm was 
considered reasonable.  Tables outside should be fenced off.  Smokers should be 
restricted.  Taxis should be discouraged and security at the development could refuse 
access except for disabled passengers. Residents considered that there be no vehicular 
access. They stated that taxis already created a parking problem in Theberton Street.  
 
The applicant stated that a no entry policy after 10pm was not appropriate and it would be 
difficult to micro manage access and egress. The Sub-Committee should consider the 
weight it gave to the planning consent in the context of hours of operation.  The applicant 
had until 2017 to make amendments to the planning permission.  Any licence would not be 
able to be operated later than the planning consent in any event.  Any applicant for a 
premises licence would not benefit from a provisional statement if there was a material 
change in the application.  Traffic had been considered at the planning stage and it was not 
considered appropriate to condition. 
 
RESOLVED 
a) That the provisional statement in respect of 116N Upper Street, N1 1QP be granted:- 

i) To permit the premises to sell alcohol, on and off supplies only, on Sundays to 
Thursdays from 10:00 until 23:00 and Fridays and Saturdays from 10:00 until midnight. 

ii) To allow the provision of late night refreshment, Fridays and Saturdays from 23:00 until 
midnight. 

iii) Opening hours to be Sundays to Thursdays from 08:00 until 23:00 and Fridays and 
Saturdays from 08:00 until midnight. 

b) Conditions proposed by the applicant and the following additions/amendments shall be 
applied to the licence. 

 Condition 3 proposed.  The outside tables shall be cleared of patrons and rendered 
unusable by 10pm. 

 The bar area be not more than 15% of the total restaurant/bar floor space. 

 No drinks shall be served in the bar area within the last 30 minutes of the closing time 
of the premises. 

 No more than 10% of the total capacity of the restaurant shall be permitted to smoke 
outside the premises at any one time. 

 
REASONS FOR DECISION 
The Sub-Committee listened to all the evidence and submissions and read all the material. 
The Sub-Committee reached the decision having given consideration to the Licensing Act 

Page 10



Licensing Sub Committee B -  14 October 2015 
 

35 
 

2003, as amended, and its regulations, the national guidance and the Council’s Licensing 
Policy.  
 
The Sub-Committee took into consideration Licensing policy 29.  Licensing policy 29 states 
that in considering applications for a provisional statement the Sub-Committee will as far as 
reasonably practicable apply the same standards as required for the grant of the premises 
licence.   
 
Under Licensing policy 2, the premises fall into the Angel and Upper Street cumulative 
impact area.  Licensing policy 2 creates a rebuttable presumption that applications for new 
and variations to premises licences that are likely to add to the existing cumulative impact 
will normally be refused, unless an applicant can demonstrate why the operation of the 
premises involved will not add to the cumulative impact or otherwise impact adversely on 
the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
The Sub-Committee heard evidence from local residents representing Almeida Street, 
Moon Street, Studd Street and Theberton Street resident associations.  The Sub-Committee 
noted resident’s concerns about noise disturbance and loitering. Residents stated that there 
would be at least 66 flats and so the future residents above the premises should be 
considered. Residents were concerned that the hours sought in relation to the premises 
differed from the planning consent.  Residents did not want take aways of food or drink, live 
music, any new customers after 10pm or any taxi drop offs.  Residents were concerned that 
access should only be via the arcades and Upper Street. Residents were concerned about 
the number of smokers and the outside seating area and suggested that a contact number 
should be available for resident’s complaints.  
 
The Sub-Committee noted that the police and noise conditions had been agreed and the 
representations withdrawn.  The Sub-Committee heard evidence from the applicant’s 
representative that, in applying for a provisional statement, the applicant was trying to get 
the best template that their future tenant would have to abide by.  The Sub-Committee 
heard that the hours sought by the applicant were within the core hours set out in licensing 
policy 8.  The Sub-Committee heard that the proposed restaurants were not fast food 
outlets and that the whole tone was more aspirational.  The applicant had offered a 
condition that outside tables and chairs be rendered unusable by 10pm.  The applicant’s 
representative asked that there be no condition in relation to new customers after 10pm and 
stated that it would not be practicable to have a member of staff directing customers to 
Upper Street after 10pm, although there would be signage.  The Sub-Committee heard that 
the restaurant would not add to the cumulative impact due to the type of premises, location, 
hours, types and numbers of customers and the high standards of management. The Sub-
Committee noted that the applicant is promoting a mixed use for the development which 
includes the old Almeida Theatre, rehearsal rooms and hopefully local exhibitions. The 
applicant’s representative confirmed that the bar area would be no bigger than 15% of the 
floor space. It was noted that the development would have 24 hour CCTV and security. 
 
The Sub-Committee was satisfied that, with the conditions proposed and the additional 
conditions, the premises would not add to the cumulative impact in the area. The Sub-
Committee noted that if the applicant’s future tenants applied for a premises licence that 
was substantially different, new objections could be raised. The Sub-Committee noted the 
applicant’s assurances that the premises would not be operated outside the remit of the 
planning consent. The Sub-Committee noted that the applicant had met with police and 
agreed comprehensive conditions. The Sub-Committee noted that the premises were an 
integral part of the development which would benefit the area.  
 

Page 11



Licensing Sub Committee B -  14 October 2015 
 

36 
 

The Sub-Committee took into account licensing policies 2, 8, 18, 20 and 29 and concluded 
that, in granting the provisional statement with the comprehensive conditions attached, the 
licensing objectives would be promoted.   
 

65 ANGEL BEST MANGAL, 60 PENTON STREET, N1 - APPLICATION FOR A NEW 
PREMISES LICENCE (Item B4) 
The licensing officer reported that the noise officer had withdrawn their representations 
following agreement with conditions.  A document proposing additional conditions and 
amended hours, had been circulated by the applicant which would be interleaved with the 
agenda papers. 
 
The police objected to the application based on the cumulative impact policy.  The officer 
reported that there were 34 licensed premises within a 250m radius of the venue and 240 
allegations of crime in the ward. He did not consider that the premises being situated next 
door to a police station would prevent crime and disorder or public safety.  He had concerns 
regarding the completion of the operating schedule and there was nothing in the application 
that had allayed his fears.  
 
The applicant informed the Sub-Committee that hours were amended for the sale of alcohol 
for Sundays to Thursdays to 11pm and Fridays and Saturdays to 11:30 pm.  Late night 
refreshment would be to 11.30 pm on Fridays and Saturdays only.  There would be no off 
sales of alcohol.  The police were unable to attribute any crime to the venue.  There would 
be no vertical drinking.  Drinking in a restaurant was at a much slower pace than a bar or 
pub. It was not considered that the premises would add to the cumulative impact with the 
conditions.  The fumes from the chimney stack mentioned in the local resident 
representation were not from this premises. 
 
In response to questions it was noted that there were 34 covers.  The applicant had run an 
off licence for ten years and had now been managing the restaurant for five months.  The 
premises would not add to the cumulative impact policy.  The applicant was happy to agree 
a condition regarding high strength beers to discourage street drinkers. There would be no 
off sales. 
 
In summary, the police stated that they had concerns regarding the take away aspect of the 
application.  It was stated that patrons entering at 9 or 10 pm may already be drunk and 
could cause problems.  To refuse to sell alcohol to patrons who were already drunk would 
need strong management.  This venue would attract this type of patron.   
The applicant reported that a late night refreshment licence was only required for one hour 
on Fridays and Saturdays.  There was a review procedure if there were problems but the 
agent did not consider that the applicant would be reviewed.   
 
RESOLVED 
a) That The Sub-Committee have decided to grant the application for a new premises 
licence in respect of Angel Best Mangel, 60 Penton Street, N1 9PZ 

i) To permit the premises to sell alcohol, on supplies only, Sunday to Thursday from 
11:00am until 11pm and Fridays and Saturdays from 11am until 11:30pm.  

ii) To allow the provision of late night refreshment on Friday and Saturday from 23:00 until 
midnight. 

iii) Opening hours to be Monday to Saturday from 11:00 am until midnight and on Sundays 
from 11am until 11pm. 
 

b) Conditions as outlined in appendix 3 as detailed on page 205 of the agenda, the 
additional conditions tabled by the applicant with the following additions shall be applied to 
the licence. 

Page 12



Licensing Sub Committee B -  14 October 2015 
 

37 
 

 There be no beers/cider and lagers higher than 6.5% abv sold on the premises. 

 A phone number for the designated premises supervisor shall be visible from outside 
the premises. 

REASONS FOR DECISION 
The Sub-Committee listened to all the evidence and submissions and read all the material. 
The Sub-Committee reached the decision having given consideration to the Licensing Act 
2003, as amended, and its regulations, the national guidance and the Council’s Licensing 
Policy.  
 
The Sub-Committee took into consideration Licensing Policy 2.  The premises fall under the 
Kings Cross cumulative impact area.  Licensing policy 2 creates a rebuttable presumption 
that applications for new premises licences that are likely to add to the existing cumulative 
impact will normally be refused, unless an applicant can demonstrate why the operation of 
the premises involved will not add to the cumulative impact or otherwise impact adversely 
on the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
The Sub-Committee heard evidence from the police that within a radius of 250m of the 
premises there were 34 other licensed premises.  The police were concerned that in the 
application the applicant on more than one occasion cited the fact that the premises were 
next to the police station, but this was not enough to show why there would be no crime and 
disorder. A nearby late night refreshment venue had a huge amount of anti-social behaviour 
and they did not have an alcohol licence. Although the applicant may manage his premises 
differently, the nature of the premises would attract drunken people. It would have to have 
exceptionally strong management and this was not illustrated in the operating schedule.  
The Sub-Committee noted that the noise team conditions had been agreed and the 
representation withdrawn. 
  
The Sub-Committee noted that the hours sought had been reduced.  The applicant had ten 
years’ experience in the off licence trade.  The Sub-Committee noted the conditions offered 
by the applicant including that alcohol would be ancillary to food, the premises would 
operate Challenge 25, there would be CCTV to home office standards, there would be 
regular staff training, there would be an incident book, no under eighteens would be allowed 
to drink alcohol on the premises and there would be no more than six smokers permitted at 
a time.  The applicant stated that, with the reduced hours and these conditions, the 
premises would not add to the cumulative impact. The Sub-Committee noted that there 
were only 34 covers.   
 
The Sub-Committee noted that there were to be no off sales and that drinking was only 
permitted with a table meal.  The applicant indicated that he would be happy with a 
condition relating to high strength ales and beers and that it was believed that with these 
measures the premises would not add to any street drinking problems in the area.  The 
Sub-Committee noted the applicant’s comments that the chimney stack was brand new and 
that any fumes encountered by neighbouring properties could not be from his stack. 
 
The Sub-Committee took into account licensing policies 2, 8 and 11.  
 
The Sub-Committee were satisfied that, with the addition of the stringent conditions, the 
grant of the premises licence would not add to the cumulative impact and would promote 
the licensing objectives.  

 
 
 
 

Page 13



Licensing Sub Committee B -  14 October 2015 
 

38 
 

 The meeting ended at 9.15 pm 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CHAIR 
 

Page 14



 

39 
 

London Borough of Islington 
 

Licensing Sub Committee B -  20 October 2015 
 

Minutes of the meeting of the Licensing Sub Committee B held at Committee Room 4, Town Hall, 
Upper Street, N1 2UD on  20 October 2015 at 6.30 pm. 

 
 

Present: Councillors: Robert Khan (Chair), Satnam Gill and Michelline 
Ngongo  

 
 

Councillor Robert Khan in the Chair 
 

 

66 INTRODUCTIONS AND PROCEDURE (Item A1) 
Councillor Khan welcomed everyone to the meeting, asked members and officers to 
introduce themselves and outlined the procedures for the meeting. 
 

67 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Item A2) 
Apologies were received from Councillor Spall and Councillor Diner. 
 

68 DECLARATIONS OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (Item A3) 
Councillor Ngongo substituted for Councillor Spall and Councillor Gill substituted for 
Councillor Diner. 
 

69 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Item A4) 
Councillor Khan declared a personal interest in Item B4 – 424 St John Street as he is the 
ward councillor. 
 

70 ORDER OF BUSINESS (Item A5) 
The items would be considered in the order set out in the agenda. 
 

71 THE GREEN HOUSE, 49 GREEN LANES, N16 9BU - APPLICATION FOR A NEW 
PREMISES LICENCE (Item B1) 
The licensing officer tabled proposed conditions from the noise team which would be 
interleaved with the agenda papers.   
 
The noise officer reported that a number of complaints had been received during an event 
on the 10 October.  On the application form for a temporary event, regulated entertainment 
had not been ticked.  The officer stated that if the noise team had known that regulated 
entertainment was taking place they would have objected to the event based on the lack of 
sound insulation on the premises and the number of past complaints.  He asked that the 
licence be refused, but if it were granted, the tabled condition be used to replace condition 2 
on page 101 of the report. 
 
One local resident stated that there was no sound insulation on the premises.  The party 
wall was a garden fence and the roof was plastic.  Bedrooms were 6 metres away from the 
premises. At an event in early 2015 a metal band played until 10.30 at night creating 
disturbance.  A further local resident reported that he did not see how children could be 
protected from harm from the noise nuisance from the premises.  The premises could not 
contain the sound given the structure.  Residents could hear the noise arising from the sale 
of food in the evening. If films were shown there would be incredible noise escape.  It was 
reported that the premises was acoustically transparent and the business was concerned 

Page 15



Licensing Sub Committee B -  20 October 2015 
 

40 
 

about making money at children’s expense. A local resident reported that the noise from 
coffee machines and dishwashers could already be heard.  The premises were unfit for 
purpose and residents had no confidence in the applicants.  The applicants had already 
received noise complaints and had shown a disregard for the community. The applicants 
had not stated how they would address problems. There was already a saturation of 
licensed premises in the area.  Residents understood the desire to maximise  revenue 
streams but stated that the premises was not suitable. 
 
In response to questions it was noted that Leconfield Road was a quiet residential area with 
young families.  On one occasion, the music was so loud that a resident had to leave her 
house.  The only access to the main building was through the Greenhouse which had no 
soundproofing.  Patrons would be congregating in the loading bay area.  
 
The applicant reported that they had held a consultation day for residents.  Hours would be 
until 11pm on weekdays. They would be holding supper clubs and controlled events rather 
than a bar.  They would hold family friendly, community events. It was accepted that an 
event on the 14 February caused problems.  They had given a third party permission to hold 
an event but did not police it themselves and had not held anything of that nature since.  
Alcohol would be served with food rather than as a bar.  They did not want live music but 
intended to hold film screening and supper clubs for ticketed events.  They were happy to 
find a compromise.  The applicant was paying rent for the café space and if licensed he 
would have the power to stop problems.  The café was not currently working as it was and a 
wider business needed to be found. It was noted that they only heard about complaints 
when they had submitted an application in March 2015 and they were shocked.  They 
withdrew this application and had held temporary events since.   
 
A resident spoke in support of the application stating the area was in need of regeneration 
and this type of venture would bring diversity.  He did not believe that live music was the 
intention.  A consultation day had been held and it was hoped to reach a compromise with 
the residents.  The well-being room was through the Greenhouse and should be 
appropriate.  He suggested that, if there was a problem with the Greenhouse it could be 
demolished.  
 
In response to questions it was noted that events would subsidise the core business.  The 
café was a nice place for members to be.  Film screenings would take place in the well-
being room which was a brick structure with skylights.  It was accepted that there had been 
teething problems in the early days.  They had not been aware of complaints received in 
early 2015 but once aware they had stopped holding any type of event. On the 10 October 
2015 they held a market but did not tick the box stating there would be regulated 
entertainment.  The applicant had experience of catering but not of running a bar.  He 
named two of the four licensing objectives when asked. They agreed with the tabled noise 
condition.  
 
In summary the noise officer reported that if the licence was granted then live music would 
also be allowed under the Live Music Act. On the 10 October the activity took place in the 
afternoon and the noise team were unavailable to witness this event.  
 
The residents reported that the premises was unfit for purpose and compromise could not 
always be reached.  Basic noise was heard every day.  The market created a noise 
nuisance.  They asked for refusal and asked that the Sub-Committee listened to a video clip 
sent earlier in the day.   
 
The applicant stated that all conditions would be accepted. He would liaise with residents 
who would have direct communication to him for complaints.  The well-being room would be 
used for activities to minimise disruption.   

Page 16



Licensing Sub Committee B -  20 October 2015 
 

41 
 

 
During deliberation the Sub-Committee listened to a noise clip sent in by residents.  
 
RESOLVED 
That the application for a new premises licence for The Greenhouse, 49 Green Lanes, N16 
9BU be refused.  
 
REASONS FOR DECISION 
The Sub-Committee listened to all the evidence and submissions and read all the material. 
The Sub-Committee reached the decision having given consideration to the Licensing Act 
2003, as amended, and its regulations, the national guidance and the Council’s Licensing 
Policy.  
 
The Sub-Committee noted from the evidence of the residents that there was inadequate 
sound insulation for the premises which was in close proximity to residential premises. 
Families with children were living in the area and there had already been problems with 
noise resulting in loss of sleep for children and loss of amenity for all residents. Loud music 
emanated from the premises and also the noise of day to day activities such as 
conversations, and noise from a coffee machine and dishwasher. A market had been held 
on the premises in October 2015 and had been the subject of complaints. On that occasion, 
the director of the company had omitted to tick a box stating that regulated entertainment 
would be taking place when an accordion player and singer were performing.  The noise 
team stated that they would have objected to the TEN if this box had been ticked. The noise 
team had already been involved and had given advice in March 2015 that they had received 
multiple calls from residents in connection with low key events in the Greenhouse area and 
any gatherings under the glass roof outside of normal office hours had to be discouraged.  
 
The steps proposed by the applicant in the operating schedule were not appropriate to 
control the level of noise emanating from the premises.  
  
Home office guidance 8.34 and 8.35 requires applicants to obtain sufficient information to 
enable them to demonstrate when setting out steps they propose to take to promote the 
licensing objectives the layout of the local area, proximity to residential premises and any 
risks posed to the local area by the applicant’s licensable activities.  The applicant had 
failed to set out in his application how he would manage this risk of public nuisance and had 
failed to provide adequate dispersal proposals.  
 
Licensing policy 1 states that the licensing authority, in considering applications for new 
licences, will take into account the location of the premises and character of the area, the 
views of responsible authorities and other people and the physical suitability of the building 
proposed for licensable activities. 
 
The Sub-Committee considered licensing policy 10 which states, when assessing the 
applicant’s ability to demonstrate a commitment to high standards of management the 
licensing authority will take into account whether the applicant can demonstrate knowledge 
of the licensing objectives. The history of noise nuisance from the premises and complaints 
showed that the applicant appeared unaware of the potential for noise nuisance of 
licensable activities.  The Sub-Committee was dissatisfied with his grasp of licensing 
objectives when questioned. The noise team had presented a new condition at the hearing 
for an acoustic survey to be done and recommendations to be implemented. However, the 
noise team still recommended refusal. The Sub-Committee noted that the condition involved 
a survey and then considerable works to be implemented before any licensable activities 
could take place.  
 

Page 17



Licensing Sub Committee B -  20 October 2015 
 

42 
 

The Sub-Committee concluded that it was appropriate and proportionate to the licensing 
objectives of public nuisance and protection of children from harm and in the public interest 
to refuse the application.   
 

72 OLD FRIEND, 277 CALEDONIAN ROAD, N1 1ET - APPLICATION FOR A NEW 
PREMISES LICENCE (Item B2) 
The licensing officer reported that training documents, security procedures and age 
verification policy had been circulated.  These would be interleaved with the agenda papers. 
Two further conditions had been agreed with the police regarding drinking up time and the 
employment of a door supervisor after 9pm.  It was noted that the police and public health 
representation had been withdrawn after conditions had been agreed and also one resident 
representation had been withdrawn.   
 
The licensing authority welcomed the reduction in drinking hours and the employment of a 
door supervisor but reported that the premises was in a cumulative impact area and the 
presumption would need to be rebutted that the premises licence would not undermine the 
licensing objectives.  It was noted that the applicant had submitted training documents but 
had received a caution for selling alcohol previously without a licence.  There was no 
mention of the applicant’s previous training, joining pubwatch or of the maximum number of 
covers.  The conditions offered in the schedule were ambiguous with one stating that 
alcohol would only be sold to persons seated having a table meal while it was unclear if this 
was the case in the karaoke rooms. Conditions 3-5 contradicted conditions 6-8. Conditions 
needed to be clear and enforceable. He requested that a door supervisor be employed by 
an external company so they would not be subjected to management pressure.  It was 
noted that Menelik was the previous licence holder.  
 
A local resident objecting to the application, stated that it had taken years for the previous 
licence to be revoked.  The noise from the premises had been horrendous.  It had a glass 
front and no soundproofing. She wanted regeneration in Caledonian Road but there were a 
large number of licences in the area. She also considered there would be noise disorder 
from the premises. A licence to 2 or 3 am was not acceptable as it was a residential area.   
 
The licensing officer stated that the licence was until 11pm during the week and midnight at 
the weekends.  The resident stated that the neon sign outside was far too bright.  
 
The applicant’s agent referred the Sub-Committee to the training policies that had been 
circulated which should address concerns.  He would be referring to the Thwaites case.  
Hours were reduced, the premises was a restaurant with discreet karaoke and was not a 
bar or nightclub.  The application now fell within the core hours.  The representation by the 
police had been withdrawn.  The applicant would enhance the dining experience.  The 
Home Office guidance stated that the police would be the main source of advice on matters 
relating to the crime and disorder objective.  The police were no longer objecting to the 
application and were satisfied that the application did not undermine the cumulative impact 
policy.  The noise officers were not objecting and staff would be checking that all windows 
and doors were shut. They had worked through the licensing policy, they were within 
framework hours, they had created bespoke policies regarding training and dispersal, they 
could have sought a transfer of the licence if it was still in existence so would not be adding 
to the cumulative impact.  They were not seeking seasonal extensions.  The caution had 
been accepted at another premises in the borough which had been let to another individual 
who had actually been in breach of the law.  The applicant’s representative stated that Mr 
Xie accepted the caution, as he did not understand the position.  The lack of address on the 
application form was an oversight.  
 
In response to questions it was noted that there were no non-standard timings requested. It 
was reported that all aspects of the application had been discussed at length with the 

Page 18



Licensing Sub Committee B -  20 October 2015 
 

43 
 

police.  It was agreed that the door supervisor be from an external agency.  There would be 
a noise limiting device installed. The applicant, through the use of an interpreter, was 
unable to name for the Sub-Committee any of the licensing objectives.  It was noted that the 
applicant had let his shop to a tenant and he was removing alcohol from the shelves when 
he had a visit from council officers. It was accepted that he should have exercised greater 
supervision.   
 
In summary, the licensing authority stated that the Thwaites case could be distinguished 
from this premises as, in that particular case the premises were being well run and had no 
history of complaints.  In this instance the applicant had received a caution.  Also, the 
Thwaites case was possibly not in a cumulative impact area. He advised that the number of 
covers could be provided.  In response to this, the applicant’s representative stated that 
there could be a maximum of 40 covers upstairs and 40 covers downstairs. The licensing 
authority further stated that the applicant had said that he received a formal caution for an 
offence that he says he did not commit and he wondered why this would be the case.  
Alcohol would be sold in four karaoke rooms without food and there was therefore the 
potential for excess alcohol.  The premises were in a cumulative impact area and the 
applicant, although he had a personal licence was unable to answer questions about the 
licensing objectives.  The licensing authority considered this to be unsatisfactory.   
 
The resident reported that she still had concern about the noise from the karaoke rooms 
and that you could drink in these rooms.  She also raised concerns about the number of 
people in the premises.  
 
The applicant’s representative reported that the applicant’s response about the licensing 
objectives was due to the language barrier and there would be two employees on the 
premises who could speak English adequately.  The noise team had not objected and there 
was no evidence to say there would be noise disturbance.  He considered that they would 
not add to the cumulative impact and considered that their application had been hampered 
by a diabolical previous licensee. Each application should be considered on its merits. In 
the Thwaites case it stated that there should be no speculation on what might happen. A 
number of bespoke polices had been produced and hew conditions offered.  Residents had 
the power of review and the applicant risked losing the licence if he failed to run the licence 
properly.  The applicant’s representative asked the Sub-Committee to grant the licence.  
 
RESOLVED that the application for a new premises licence for Old Friend, 277 Caledonian 
Road, N1 1ET be refused. 
 
REASONS FOR DECISION 
The Sub-Committee listened to all the evidence and submissions and read all the material. 
The Sub-Committee reached the decision having given consideration to the Licensing Act 
2003, as amended, and its regulations, the national guidance and the Council’s Licensing 
Policy.  
 
The Sub-Committee took into consideration Licensing Policy 2 and Home Office guidance 
13.30.  The premises fall under the Kings Cross cumulative impact area.  Licensing policy 2 
creates a rebuttable presumption that applications for new premises licences that are likely 
to add to the existing cumulative impact will normally be refused, unless an applicant can 
demonstrate in the operating schedule why the operation of the premises involved will not 
add to the cumulative impact or otherwise impact adversely on the promotion of the 
licensing objectives. 
 
The Sub-Committee considered that the activities proposed were likely to add to the 
existing cumulative impact of the area. The applicant had not demonstrated that the 
operation of the premises would not impact adversely on the licensing objective of public 

Page 19



Licensing Sub Committee B -  20 October 2015 
 

44 
 

nuisance and the Sub-Committee did not regard this as an exceptional case.  There were 
no conditions which could effectively mitigate the negative impact on the licensing objective 
of public nuisance and it was appropriate and proportionate and in the public interest to 
refuse the application. 
 
The Sub-Committee noted that the previous premises had ceased to operate before this 
application was submitted. Although the previous licensed premises had had a troubled 
history, the Sub-Committee accepted the argument of the applicant’s representative that it 
should concentrate on the merits of the current application and gave no consideration to 
earlier issues with another premises licence holder.  
 
The police, public health and noise team had withdrawn their representations when 
conditions had been agreed, however, the licensing authority continued to be concerned 
about the potential for public nuisance. One of the conditions stated that there would be no 
vertical drinking anywhere on the premises. The Sub-Committee noted that it was not clear 
from the operating schedule whether the restaurant condition would apply to the entire 
premises and it was confirmed that in the basement area, where karaoke would take place, 
substantial meals would not be served.  There could be a total of 80 patrons on the 
premises including 40 downstairs and it would not be possible to impose a condition 
realistically requiring a restaurant condition to apply to the entire premises.  
 
Under licensing policy 10 the licensing authority, when assessing the applicant’s ability to 
demonstrate a commitment to high standards of management will take into account whether 
the applicant can demonstrate a comprehensive knowledge of best practice, can 
understand verbal and written advice and requirements, can demonstrate knowledge of the 
licensing objectives and their responsibilities under the Licensing Act, can run his business 
lawfully and in accordance with good practice and is able to demonstrate a track record of 
compliance with legal requirements.  
 
The applicant had accepted a police caution for selling alcohol without a licence in other 
premises within the last 18 months.  Although the applicant’s representative stated that this 
had been due to a misunderstanding and he had not committed the offence, the Sub-
Committee considered that it could not go behind the fact of the caution.  
 
When the applicant was questioned on his understanding of the licensing objectives, it 
became clear that he could not speak English. His colleagues translated the question but he 
was still unable to answer. The applicant’s representative stated that he would be the 
general manager and there would be an under manager and another person who could 
speak adequate English at the premises.  However, they made no representations at the 
Sub-Committee and there was no evidence that the applicant could understand his 
responsibilities under the Licensing Act. 
 

73 THE FIG TREE, 35 UPPER STREET, N1 OPN - APPLICATION FOR A NEW PREMISES 
LICENCE (Item B3) 
The licensing officer reported that noise and police representations had been withdrawn as 
conditions had been agreed. A letter had been received from the applicant stating that this 
licence replaced a previously held licence.  The letter would be interleaved with the agenda 
papers.  
 
A local resident reported that Upper Street was already saturated and was concerned 
regarding off sales.  There would be noise following the closure of the premises after 12:30 
at night.  There was too great a concentration of licensed premises in the Angel area and 
the saturation policy should be applied.  She was very frustrated about the number of 
licenses being granted and stated that this would be another one that would add to the 
cumulative impact. 

Page 20



Licensing Sub Committee B -  20 October 2015 
 

45 
 

 
The licensing officer reported that this would be a licence for on sales only and the resident 
stated that this would be an improvement.  
 
The applicant’s representative reported that the premises were acquired in 2003 for A3 use.  
The applicant undertook his responsibility towards training.  In 2009, planning permission 
was granted for 3 residential units above and during construction work the premises caught 
fire.  The freeholder was ordered by the court to put them the applicant back in the 
premises.  He understood the saturation policy.  He advised that if there had not been a fire 
they would still be operating under the original licence and so would not have an additional 
impact.  This licence was for a restaurant which served alcohol only with a meal.  There was 
no bar area.  They had not any issues or complaints prior to the fire and hoped to join the 
local pubwatch. Training would be available for all staff. Opening times and conditions had 
been agreed and the applicant wanted to run the premises as it had been run previously.  
The opening hours had been amended.  The applicant was a responsible operator and it 
was hoped that he would be given the opportunity to run the premises.   
 
RESOLVED  
a) That a new premises licence in respect of The Fig Tree, 35 Upper Street, N1 0PN be 
granted:-            

i) To permit the sale by retail of alcohol, on supplies only, Sundays to Thursdays from 
11:00 until 23:00 and Fridays and Saturdays from 11:00 until midnight.  

ii) To allow late night refreshment, Fridays and Saturdays from 23:00 until midnight.  
iii) The premises to be open to the public, Sundays to Thursdays from 09:00 until 23:30 

and Fridays and Saturdays from 09:00 until half past midnight.  
 
b) Conditions as outlined in appendix 3 as detailed on page 183 of the agenda shall be 
applied to the licence. 
 
REASONS FOR DECISION 
The Sub-Committee listened to all the evidence and submissions and read all the material. 
The Sub-Committee reached the decision having given consideration to the Licensing Act 
2003, as amended, and its regulations, the national guidance and the Council’s Licensing 
Policy.  
 
The Sub-Committee took into consideration Licensing Policy 2.  The premises fall under the 
Angel and Upper Street cumulative impact area.  Licensing policy 2 creates a rebuttable 
presumption that applications for new premises licences that are likely to add to the existing 
cumulative impact will normally be refused, unless an applicant can demonstrate why the 
operation of the premises involved will not add to the cumulative impact or otherwise impact 
adversely on the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
The Sub-Committee noted that there were now no off sales which was a main concern of 
the residents, two of whom had withdrawn.  They noted that the applicant had previous 
experience of running a similar business in the same location lawfully and had 
demonstrated a track record of compliance with legal requirements. In his presentation he 
demonstrated a comprehensive knowledge of best practice and had agreed conditions with 
the noise team and police. The application was for a restaurant operating within core hours 
set out in licensing policy 8. 
 
The Sub-Committee considered that the grant of the premises licence could potentially add 
to the existing cumulative impact.  However, the applicant demonstrated in his operating 
schedule with the agreed conditions that there would be no negative cumulative impact on 
any of the licensing objectives.  

Page 21



Licensing Sub Committee B -  20 October 2015 
 

46 
 

 
The Sub-Committee considered that it was appropriate, proportionate and in the public 
interest to grant the licence.  
 

74 424 ST JOHN STREET, EC1V 4NJ - APPLICATION FOR A NEW PREMISES LICENCE 
(Item B4) 
The licensing officer reported that the applicant was not in attendance.  A letter and email 
had been sent informing the applicant of the notice of hearing.  
 
RESOLVED that the item be adjourned to a future meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 

 The meeting ended at 8.50 pm 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CHAIR 
 

Page 22



Page 23

Agenda Item B1



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69

Agenda Item B2



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103

Agenda Item B3



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

Environment & Regeneration 
Municipal Office, 222 Upper Street, London, N1 1XR 

 
 
 
Report of: Service Director, Public Protection 

Meeting of  
 

Date 
 

Agenda Item 
 

Ward(s) 

 
Licensing Sub-Committee 

 
8 December 2015   

 
 

 
Highbury East  

 
Delete as 
appropriate 

 Non-exempt 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Subject: PREMISES LICENCE NEW APPLICATION 
RE: RESTAURANT, 88 HIGHBURY PARK, LONDON, N5 2XE   

1. Synopsis 

1.1 This is an application for a new premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003.  
 

1.2 The application is for a licence to allow: 

• The sale of alcohol for consumption on the premises: 12:00 to 23:00 on Mondays to 

Sundays.   

• The following opening hours: 10:00 to 23:30 on Mondays to Sundays. 

 

2. Relevant Representations 

Licensing Authority No  

Metropolitan Police Yes ( Conditions agreed)  

Noise No 

Health and Safety No 

Trading Standards No 

Page 131

Agenda Item B4



Public Health No 

Safeguarding Children No 

London Fire Brigade No 

Local residents Yes: 2 

Other bodies No  

 

3. Background 

3.1 Papers are attached as follows:- 
 Appendix 1:  application form; and copies of correspondence sent to representations.  
 Appendix 2:  representations; 
 Appendix 3:   suggested conditions and map of premises location. 

3.2 Two local residents have submitted representations; in additional is a representation from the 
Police which has been agreed and comments from the Planning team.   

3.3 The application was listed for the 25 August 2015 but the item was adjourned because no one 
turned up to present the case. The Licensing Officer has spoken to the applicant who has 
indicated they were not able to proceed with the purchase of lease. They have been contacted 
on three separate occasions to formally withdraw the application.  

3.4 As they have failed withdraw the application, the item now needs to be formally listed again so 
that the Committee can consider the application in their absence.  

4. Planning Implications 

4.1 The Planning & Development section have stated the current planning consent states that 
premises shall not operate except between the hours of 0800 and 1800 on any weekday and 
between 0800 and 1400 on Saturdays, and shall not operate at all on Sundays or Bank 
Holidays. 

 
5 Recommendations 

5.1 To determine the application for a new premises licence under Section 17 of the Licensing Act 
2003. 

5.2 To consider that this address is in the Saturation or “Cumulative Impact Policy” of Islington.  
This special policy creates a rebuttable presumption that applications for new premises 
licences, club premises certificates, or variation applications that are likely to add to the existing 
cumulative impact will normally be refused, unless the applicant can demonstrate why the 
operation of the premises involved will not add to the cumulative impact or otherwise impact 
adversely on the promotion of the licensing objectives.  

Page 132



5.3 If the Committee grants the application it should be subject to: 

i. conditions prepared by the Licensing Officer which are consistent with the Operating 
Schedule (see appendix 3) 

ii. any conditions deemed appropriate by the Committee to promote the four licensing 
objectives.(see appendix 3) 

6 Conclusion and reasons for recommendations 

6.1 The Council is required to consider this application in the light of all relevant information, and if 
approval is given, it may attach such conditions as appropriate to promote the licensing 
objectives. 

 

Background papers: 

The Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy 
Licensing Act 2003 
Secretary of States Guidance 

Final Report Clearance 

Signed by    
 Service Director – Public Protection  Date 
    

 
Received by    
 Head of Scrutiny and Democratic Services  Date 
    

 

Report author: Licensing Service 

Tel: 020 75027 3031 

E-mail: licensing@islington.gov.uk 

 

 

 

Page 133

mailto:licensing@islington.gov.uk


Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163

Agenda Item B5



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170



Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



Page 180



Page 181



Page 182



Page 183



Page 184


	Agenda
	A6 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	Minutes of Previous Meeting

	B1 Nando's, 99-100 Turnmill Street, EC1M 5QP - Application for a premises licence variation
	B2 Borough Wines, 344a Essex Road, N1 3PD - Application for a new premises licence
	LSC Report Signed Cover Sheet - Borough Wnes
	LSC Report - Borough Wines - Unsigned

	B3 The Junction Cafe, 95 Junction Road, N19 5QX - Application for a new premises licence
	B4 Restaurant, 88 Highbury Park, N5 2XE - Application for a new premises licence
	Cover 88 Highbury Park
	Subject: PREMISES LICENCE  APPLICATION
	5.1 To determine the application  premises licence under Section  of the Licensing Act 2003.
	5.2 To consider that this address is in the Saturation or “Cumulative Impact Policy” of Islington.  This special policy creates a rebuttable presumption that applications for new premises licences, club premises certificates, or variation applications...
	i. conditions prepared by the Licensing Officer which are consistent with the Operating Schedule (see appendix 3)

	88 HIGHBURY PARK

	B5 City News, 4 Exmouth Market, EC1R 4PX - Application for a new premises licence

